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drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)
Trustees’ report for the year ended 31 August 2020

Introduction to the Annual Report

The Trustees present their Annual Report together with the financial statements and
auditor's report of the charitable company for the year to 31 August 2020. The Annual
Report serves the purposes of both a Trustees' report and a Directors' report (incorporating
a strategic report) under company law.

Part One of the report looks at the governance and work of the Trust towards the
achievement of our strategic objectives over the period of 1 September 2019 to 31 August
2020. It sets out our governance arrangements, activities, achievements and plans for future
work.

Part Two of the report presents the detail of the Trust's financial performance over the
period of 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020 and demonstrates compliance with the
Academies Financial Handbook 2020 and ESFA Reporting requirements.

To note:

The Trustees have also referred to the guidance contained in the Charity Commission’s
general guidance on public benefit when reviewing the Trust's aims and objectives. In
particular, the Trustees have considered how planned activities will contribute to the aims
and objectives that have been set and how these may need to be adapted in light of the
ongoing Covid-19 pandemic challenges and restrictions.

Trust Vision and Values

Trust vision:

‘all pupils achieve the highest standard of educational outcomes regardless of circumstance
or background’

Effective
partnerships

Excellence
in education

I mpactiul
teaching
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drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)
Trustees’ report for the year ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

Trust values:

LF
\

Optimism

. and expectation

Trust

. .Success.” s . .
YL Vision underpinned and integrity

‘ ot by the values of the
drb Ignite Trust

Acts of
kindness

are noticed and
matter

Every .

- contribution
counts

REPORT PART ONE

Section 1: Governance and School Improvement

1:1 Background

The Trust operates nine primary schools serving catchment areas in Birmingham and.
Dudley which are:

School Name Local Authority Area NOR
Audley Primary School Birmingham 820
Beechwood -CE Primary Dudley 194
Hob Green Primary School Dudley 230
Jervoise Primary School Birmingham 210
Princethorpe Infant School Birmingham 178
Princethorpe Junior School Birmingham 238
The Bromley Pensnett Primary School Dudley 265
The Oval Primary School Birmingham 628
Wychall Primary School Birmingham 398

The Trust schools have a combined pupil capacity of 3,161 and had a roll of 3,066 in the
school census of October 2020
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drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)
Trustees’ report for the year ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

1:2 Conversions to the Trust
The Company was incorporated at Combanies House on 28 October 2014.

Signed commercial transfer agreements and academy conversion dates are presented in the
following table:

.o Name of school. | - Conversion to academy
Jervoise Primary School 1 October 2015
Wychall Primary School 1 October 2015
Bromley Pensnett Primary School 1 October 2015
Beechwood CE Primary School 1 October 2015
Princethorpe Infant School 1 October 2016
Audley Primary School 1 October 2016
The Oval Primary School 1 September 2016
Hob Green Primary School 1 November 2016
Princethorpe Junior School 1 March 2019

1:3 Governance structure and accountability

Constitution

~
The multi academy trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The .
charitable company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association are the primary governing
documents of the Trust. The Trustees of drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust are also the
directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law. The charitable
company is known as drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust. Details of the Trustees who served
during the period covered by this Report are included in the Reference and Administrative
"details on page 1.

Members’ liability

Individual Trust members undertake to contribute to the assets of the Trust in the event of it
being wound up whilst they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a
member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities
contracted before they ceased to be a member.

Trustee indemnities

The Trust purchases indemnity insurance to cover the liability of the Trustees which by virtue
of any rule of law would otherwise attach to them in respect of any negligence, default or
breach of trust or breach of duty of which they may be guilty in relation to the Trust; provided
that any insurance shall not extend to any claim arising from any act or omission which the
Trustees knew to be a breach of trust or breach of duty or which was committed by the
Trustees in reckless disregard to whether it was a breach of trust or breach of duty or not
and provided also that any such insurance shall not extend to the costs of any unsuccessful
defence to a criminal prosecution brought against the Trustees in their capacity as Trustees
of the Multi Academy Trust. The insurance provides cover up to £10,000,000 on any one
claim.
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drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)
Trustees’ report for the year ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

Trustee competency

The Trust Board is composed of non-executive Trustees. Non-executive Trustees are
appointed by the members with the intention that the Board should comprise of an effective
combination of experience, skills, and knowledge to fully meet the accountability
requirements outlined in the DfE Academies Financial Handbook 2019, Governance
Handbook 2019 and associated Competency Framework.

Individuals appointed as non-executive Trustees to the Trust Board are required to
demonstrate:

e a set of competencies required by the Trust Board and in'line with the DfE
Governance Handbook 2019 and associated Competency Framework and
Academies Financial Handbook 2019 )

e a robust skills and competencies set assessed and monitored through application,
interview and annual audit

e a commitment to getting to know the Trust's schools well and fulfilling the vision and
values of the Trust

e a commitment to maintaining a rigorous strategic oversight of Trust statutory,
mandatory, and regulatory financial management and governance responsibilities in
line with the Academies Financial Handbook 2019

To note: The CEO (Accounting Officer) attends all Trust Board meetings but does not serve
as a Trustee.

1:4 Trustee selection process, induction, and professional development

The selection process for prospective trustees is thorough and may include local advertising,
national advertising, website and other social media platforms. An application and interview
process takes place led by a Trustee Selection Panel. Final selection is approved by the full
Trust Board and Members.

Newly appointed Trustees are fully inducted using a bespoke induction package that
includes face to face sessions and on-line training modules:
o face to face sessions with the CEO and members of the Executive Leadership Team
effective governance and risk management
financial management and robust oversight
safeguarding, child protection and Prevent training
visits to Trust schools and associated learning walks
observation of school improvement challenge and support model through the Trust
Improvement Board process
e understanding and analysis of school improvement data including attendance and
exclusions data
¢ induction briefings on key areas e.g. SEND, attendance, pupil premium, children
looked after, exclusions
o safer recruitment practice
e GDPR training
e document sharing and reading lists e.g. Academies Financial Handbook 2019 and
KCSIE 2019
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drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)
Trustees’ report for the year ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

The Trust maintains an annual Professional Development Plan accessible to both Members
and Trustees. The plan includes a bespoke induction programme for new Members and
Trustees.

Further professional development opportunities are provided for Trustees to work alongside
school leaders to shape the vision and priorities of the Trust at various points in the
academic year. This includes learning walks at Trust schools, attendance at professional
conferences and events and the Trust's Annual Senior Leadership Strategic Planning Days,
held annually in late January.

1:5 Board sub-committee structure

These are set out clearly in the Trust's Governance Charter and Scheme of Delegation and
Financial Management Manual which can be viewed on the Trust’s website.

The Trust Board operates with five main sub-committees. The committees for the period of
the Report are: '

Finance

Audit and Risk

Achievement, Support and Scrutiny
Remuneration and Nomination
Trust Improvement Board

A Pl bad e

To note:

(1) Disciplinary and grievance appeals are heard by a panel of Trustees as and when
required and constituted according to Trustee availability.

(i) The Trust’'s Governance structure has replaced local governing bodies with Trust
Improvement Boards. These meet for every school on a termly basis and provide
effective strategic oversight of governance, leadership, finance, and school
improvement priorities. Parents are encouraged to engage in two-way
communication with their child’s school and the Trust through termly Parent and
Community Advisory Forums. The model has been reviewed in September 2020
with some changes made to respond to the Covid-19 pandemic and will be further
reviewed at the end of the school year 2020/21 as the Trust emerges from the
pandemic. 4

(iii) - All sub-committees have formal Terms of Reference which define the purpose and
structure of the committee, clearly outlining its objectives, scope, and
accountability. For example, the Terms of Reference for the Finance Committee,
include the preparation, monitoring and management of the Trust's budget and
implementation of all financial management policies alongside associated
processes for managing reserves and investment.

1:6 Trustee specific roles and accountabilities
The Trust Board takes all statutory, mandatory, and regulatory accountabilities seriously and
is fully compliant with the Academies Financial Handbook 2019 and associated ESFA

requirements. To maintain a focus on important aspects of school improvement work, the
Trust Board appoints individual Trustees to fulfil particular roles.
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drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)
Trustees’ report for the year ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

Over the period of the Report the following appointments were made:

‘Trust Chair - David Sheldon
Trust Vice Chair : Viv Randall

-Child Protection + Safeguarding : David Sheldon
Relationship + Health Education David Sheldon
Single Point of Contact (Child Protection) Robert Bowater
Children Looked After (CLA) Robert Bowater
SEND Viv Randall
Trustee Professional Development Lead Kevin McCabe
Pupil Premium- Kevin McCabe
Clerk to the Trust Board Catherine Ludwig

1:7 Trust Board Annual Business Planner

The Trust Board organises its work through an Annual Business Planner. This structures
how the Board will fulfil its strategic responsibilities for overseeing, advising and challenging
the Trust's overall performance and standards of educational provision. This includes the
performance management and remuneration arrangements for the CEO (Accounting
Officer).

An ongoing focus over the 2019-2020 Reporting Year has continued to be well-organised,
robust governance and financial management to ensure full compliance with all DfE and
ESFA reporting requirements.

1:8 Public benefit and equal opportunities

The Trust is mindful of the guidance on Public Benefit issued by the Charity Commission and
the requirements to comply with current legalisation. Over the reporting year the Trust has
continued to provide education-to puplls that:

is balanced and broadly based

provides the spiritual, moral, cultural, mental and physical development of all pupils
prepares pupils for the opportunities, responsibilities and experiences of later life
promotes, sustains and increases individual and collective knowledge and
understanding of learning, motivation and wellbeing

e supports parents and the home learning environment

This has been particularly challenging over the latter part of the year when government
required schools to close for a period of time. The Trust worked exceptionally hard to provide
age appropriate learning opportunities for pupils to engage with at home. Schools remained
open for the most vulnerable pupils and the children of keyworkers.

Over the reporting year, the Trust has remained constantly mindful of its responsibilities to
the one Church of England school (Beechwood C.E. Primary) to promote Christian
distinctiveness and meet all SIAMs Inspection requirements.

The Trust has continued to take its equality responsibilities seriously. The Trust is an equal
opportunity employer and strives to give full and fair consideration to all applicants for
employment, training and promotions, irrespective of disability, gender, race, colour or
sexual orientation.
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drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)
Trustees’ report for the year ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

1:9 Improved governance and financial oversight

Over the 2019 to 2020 Reporting Year, the Trust has embedded the Trust Improvement
Board structure into its governance framework. This provides an additional level of
governance incorporating an internal support and challenge function for holding schools
robustly to account for financial, leadership and standards outcomes in line with actions set
out in school SEFs, Rapid Action Plans and Budget/Resource/Staffing Plans. The Trust
Improvement Board is composed of executive leadership team members and Trustees.
Meetings are formally clerked with minutes openly available. The Board uses the outcomes
of the Trust Improvement Board to maintain oversight of critical school functions, processes
and procedures and to evaluate how successfully its policies have been implemented.

Child protection, safeguarding and Prevent duties

Quality of teaching and learning

Pupil performance against national age-related expectations
Pupil attendance and exclusions

Admissions and fair access

Pupil behaviour and wellbeing

Alignment with Trust vision, values and improvement priorities
Ofsted inspection outcomes

Staff professional development and wellbeing

Collaborative working across Trust schools

Partnership working with parents, carers and local communities
Statutory compliance

Budget and resource management

Asset management

Statutory health and safety requirements

Equality and diversity

The impact of the Trust Improvement Board has continued to be significant over the
reporting year with strong evidence of schools and Trustees working collaboratively to
secure school improvement.
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drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)
Trustees’ report for the year ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

Section 2: Achievements over the Reporting Year 2019-20

2.1 Strategic priorities for reporting year

The Trust’s strategic priorities for the reporting year are set out in the Annual Business Plan.
These are presented through six strategic work-strands:

Work-strand 1 | Equalising opportunities for children

AIM - to continually improve pupil progress and standards for all pupils
by openly sharing knowledge and learning between schools, building
the capacity of staff, and holding schools to account for impact.

Work-strand 2 | School improvement through curriculum consistency and depth
: AIM - to continue to develop the Trust's curriculum offer to ensure the
learning experiences of all pupils are consistent, broad and balanced.

Work-strand 3 | Workforce development, recruitment, and retention

AIM - to further develop outward facing leadership and professional
development strategy through workforce review process that supports
talent management and effective recruitment and retention.

Work-strand 4 | Culture of safeguarding
AIM - to continue to build a culture of safeguarding across the Trust

and its schools and build leading edge practice.

Work-strand 5§ | Financial probity and sustainability

. AIM- to continue to improve and refine financial systems to maintain full
compliance with the Academies Financial Handbook 2019. To review
established systems to make sure they are fit for purpose, efficient and
keep the Trust and its schools safe whilst providing value for money.

Work-strand 6 | Effective partnerships and strong governance
AIM - to continue to build good governance based on purposeful
decision making, participation, accountability, and transparency.

2:2 COVID-19 Response Strategy and Risk Assessment

A major part of the 2019-20 reporting year has been impacted by the Covid-19 pandemic,
requiring the Trust to respond at pace to a plethora of government, Public Health England
and Health and Safety Executive guidance and requirements. The changing face of the
pandemic has required a dynamic, adaptive, and collaborative response from the Trust and
its schools.

~ Pupil and staff safety alongside gold standard infection control measures have been central

to the thinking of Trustees and senior leaders at all times. Supporting staff, families and
children during this time has become an overriding priority, requiring some reorganisation of
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drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)
Trustees’ report for the year ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

the Trust's planned work. This has affected the delivery of the strategic priorities set out in
the table above.

2:3 Successful OFSTED Summary Evaluation

In November 2019, the Trust was visited by Ofsted to conduct a Trust Summary Evaluation
of the organisation. This is a root and branch review across three key areas of the Trust's
work:

¢ Financial management and probity
o Effective governance
o School improvement and pupil outcomes

The four-day visit was led by two HMI Inspectors and involved every member of the
Executive leadership team, Trustees (particularly the Chair) and headteachers. The Trust
received an exceptionally positive Evaluation Letter which commended the Trust for its many
strengths. Raising individual school performance and overall pupil outcomes remains the key
challenge for the Trust as it moves forwards. Unfortunately, this drive for further rapid
improvement will be impacted by the pandemic. A quote from the Evaluation Letter reflects
the Trust's success: :

The Trust's vision and values are well understood by Trustees, leaders
and staff alike. A sense of social responsibility drives Trustees and
leaders to improve the life chances of pupils in their schools.

Ofsted: Trust Summary Evaluation Report
November 2019

2:4 Development of school improvement team

Over the reporting year the capacity of the Trust's school improvement team has been
enhanced with the appointment of two senior leaders:

e Executive Director for School Improvement (permanent)
« Director for Curriculum and Professional Development (one-year contract)

To support these senior appointments the Trust has seconded further expert teacher
capacity from within the Trust workforce using a systems leadership approach. This will use
their skills and experience to support Trust schools with specific challenges. Their
contribution will increase the leadership capacity of other schools to help raise standards:

e School Improvement Leads x 3 (0.4 FTE)
¢ School Improvement Practitioners x 6 (0.4 FTE)
o Inclusion Lead (0.4 FTE)

2:5 Development of central capacity

Over the reporting year the capacity of the Trust's central executive team has also been
enhanced to include:

¢ Director of Operations
¢ Office Manager
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drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)
Trustees’ report for the year ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

This additional capacity to the Trust's employed infrastructure will ensure fitness for purpose,
enabling stronger performance and overall progress. This has been of significant value over
the reporting year in managing and co-ordinating the Trust’'s response to the Covid-19
pandemic.

2.6 Reading for Pleasure — Reading Improvement Programme

All schools in the Trust have become involved with the Open University’s Reading for
Pleasure Project and associated teacher professional development programme. This
involves all schools setting clear targets and success criteria for the whole school
improvement of reading and engagement of children in literary activity

2.7 UNICEF Rights Respecting Schools Programme

Over the reporting year all Trust schools have engaged with the UNICEF Rights Respecting
Schools Programme, working together to create safe and inspiring places to learn where
children’s rights are respected, their talents are nurtured and they are able to thrive. The
Programme aims to achieve four key areas of impact for children:

Wellbeing
Participation
Relationships
Self-esteem

These help to ensure all pupils are happy and healthy, feel safe, can build and sustain
strong relationships with both peers and adults and become active in school life and the
wider world.

2.8 Trust professional development offer

During 2019-20 the Trust built on its staff professional development offer although this was
disrupted in the latter part of the year as a result of the Covi-19 pandemic. The Trust was
forced to postpone some events whilst successfully transferring others to online delivery.
Delivery of sessions and workshops has led to an increase in attendance and participation in
some areas and the Trust is currently contemplating the continuance of this form of delivery.

Cross Trust Forums for specialist subject areas and tasks have become embedded with the
direct outcome that the Trust is more collaborative and sharing practice has become the
norm.

2.9 Learning support systems and processes

The improvement priorities, strategies and activities of the Trust over the reporting year have
been supported by consistently improving policies, systems and procedures. This has
enabled the development of a more coherent approach to the raising of school standards
and pupil outcomes. For example:

e CPOMMS safeguarding software embedded across all schools for monitoring
safeguarding, wellbeing, and all pastoral issues

¢ Improved tracking of attendance and absence data

¢ Financial monitoring software introduced

¢ Online risk management and risk register system introduced
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drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)
Trustees’ report for the year ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

e Further development of online Trustee CPD Programme linked to major
accountabilities i.e. finance, governance, safeguarding, GDPR and school
improvement

¢ Further development of capacity of INSIGHT pupil tracking and assessment system

2.10 Looking ahead to 2021

The Covid-19 pandemic seriously affected the 2019-20 school year. Primary pupil tests were
cancelled as schools were forced to close and put in place arrangements for remote learning
quickly for all pupils. Digital technology has been central to enhancing the learning
experience which has consequently been variable depending on pupils’ access to
appropriate devices.

However, classroom teaching is the mainstay of education and has been sorely missed and
seriously disrupted for a large part of the year. The crisis has also highlighted the difficulties
faced by the children who experience the greatest degree of challenge in their lives, and who
are from the most disadvantaged backgrounds. It is these pupils who have most missed the
benefit of direct interaction with teachers and teaching assistants. Catching up on lost
learning time will be a significant, complex, and difficult task over the coming year 2020 to
2021 and will focus on: :

reducing learning gaps across all phases due to loss of school time during Covid-19
% of pupils achieving a good level of development (GLD)

% of pupils ‘achieving age related expectations at KS1 and KS2

% of pupils working at greater depth

increased rates of pupil progress

consistency of teaching quality within and across schools

continued improvement in rates of attendance and reduction in persistent absence
continued downward trajectory in rate of fixed and permanent exclusions

greater engagement of parents in children’s learning

School improvement team and external adviser visits into schools have been restricted to
avoid the spread of the virus and maintain tight infection measures making the support and
challenge functions of the team very limited. In the absence of validated pupil performance
data for 2020, the following table provides a broad overview of every school

Ofsted End of

: category : ' reporting
Name of overall Date last Ofsted year
school Judgement inspection position position
Jervoise Primary Good September
School 2018 '
Wychall Primary Good February 2020
School ' ’
Bromley Good September .
Pensnett 2018 g @
Primary School §{ ¢ 7=

Page 12




drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)
Trustees’ report for the year ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

Beechwood C of E | Good May 2019

Primary School ! i )

Princethorpe Infant | Good May 2019

School | § )|

Audley Primary Requires June 2019

School Improvement ‘ -

The Oval Primary

School Good May 2019 ' '

Hob Green i N _

Primary School Good May 2019

Princethorpe New to Trust Will be in : »

Junior School Ofsted window *‘ )
2021-22

Trust Growth and People Plan.

As the Trust emerges from the Covid-19 pandemic over the coming year to August 2021, the
intention is to review key strategic and operational priorities in terms of financial
sustainability and fitness for purpose. This will focus on two significant areas that have been
effectively halted by the impact of the virus on both leadership time and potential to act. The
two areas are:

e Trust People Plan - the capacity and capability of the workforce to achieve
improvement in school performance and pupil outcomes. A Trust People Plan will
be developed with clear priorities for workforce planning, recruitment, retention and
talent management. This will be costed for immediate affordability and include
financial projections to 2024 which will demonstrate sustainability, value for money
and intended impact. :

e Trust growth — total pupil numbers across all Trust schools currently stand at 3066.
Forward projections suggest that this figure will drop over the next three years due
to a fall in the birth rate across both Birmingham and Dudley. The Trust has already
met with the Regional Schools Commissioner and his senior staff to discuss the
ambition of the Trust to increase its size to include more primary schools through
careful and structured growth that will address the deficit position. This ambition
was well received and over 2021 the Trust will continue to work closely with-the
RSC to pursue opportunities for growth in line with the Trust's strategic plan, vision
and operating values.

REPORT PART TWO

Financial Governance, Management and Statements

To note:

The financial statements contained in this Part Two of the Trustees’ Annual Report comply
with the Academies Financial Handbook 2019 and ESFA reporting requirements, the Trust's
Articles and Funding Agreement.
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drb lgnité Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)
Trustees’ report for the year ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

1.1 Financial oversight

To enable the Trust to improve its financial governance the work of associated sub-
committees i.e. Finance, and Audit and Risk have been developed over the reporting year.
This has supported Trustees in the overall management and monitoring of finance, risk and
staffing matters by providing a strengthened level of scrutiny of the finance, risk and HR
practices of the Trust, prior to making recommendations on these matters to the Trustees for
their decision.

The financial outcomes of Trust are detailed in the following pages. The Trust takes full
responsibility for its financial affairs and uses resources efficiently to maximise outcomes for
pupils. The Trust has effective governance structures, systems, and processes in place to
ensure compliance and sound financial probity. Trustees consider that the: robust internal
controls, risk management and assurance processes are in line with Section 2 of the
Academies Financial Handbook 2019. Finances are currently sound and well planned. The
Trust’s internal control processes are laid down in the Trust's Financial Procedures Manual.
This was reviewed in the reporting year.

e The Board and its committees meet regularly to discharge their responsibilities to
ensure effective financial management arrangements (AFH 2019 Sec 2).

e The Trust has reviewed its written Scheme of Delegation in the reporting year and this
can be accessed on the Trust's website.

e All financial meetings of the Trust Board and its sub-committees are professionally
clerked (AFH 2019 Sec 2) with minutes produced and distributed appropriately.

e The Trust maintains a detailed Risk Register which details and scores all financial
risks alongside clear mitigation strategies.

The principal funding source to the Trust is government grant income delivered through the
Education, Skills and Funding Agency (ESFA) in line with the Trust's Funding Agreement.
All expenditure of this grant income is planned to fulfil the educational vision, priorities, and
strategies of the Trust.

During the year ended 31 August 2020 total resources expended were £21,948,799 and the
excess of expenditure over income was £2,168,998 which included depreciation of
£1,223,414.

1.2 Financial performance indicators
o Direct costs as a percentage of total costs were 66.9% (2019 : 66.5%)
e Support costs as a percentage of total costs were 33.1% (2019 : 33.5%)

e Total payroll costs as a pe[centage of recurring income were 83.2% (2019 : 81.8%)

Designated funds have been set against the Trust's identified school improvement priorities.
Some changes have been agreed with Trustees to cover the requirements of the Trust's
Covid-19 Strategy and associated risk assessments. This has been an unprecedented
reporting year that has required adaptive and fiexible financial planning.

1.3 Related party and other connected transactions

Over the reporting year there have been no related parties concerns which either control or
significantly influence the decisions and operations of the Trust over the reporting year
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drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)
Trusteesf report for the year ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

1.4 Engagement with employees (including disabled persons)

The Trust is committed to ensuring equality of opportunity for all who learn and work here.
We respect and value positive differences in race, gender, sexual orientation, ability, class
and age.

The Trust considers all applications from disabled persons, bearing in mind the aptitudes of
the individuals concerned. Where an existing employee becomes disabled, every effort is
made to ensure that employment within the Trust is continued.

The Trust works with employee Trade Unions across both of the Local Authorities and
engages in consultation where required to ensure all aspects of the Charitable company are
discussed and consulted.

1.5 Engagement with suppliers, customers and others in a business
relationship with the trust

In exercising its powers and duties the Trust has complied with its duty to have due regard to
the Charity Commissions guidance on Public Benefit. The main public benefit delivered by
the Trust is the provision of a high quality of education to its pupils.

1.6 Financial risk management

Trustees acknowledge their responsibility for identifying and managing the risks to which the
Trust is exposed. A termly review of the Trust’s Risk Register ensures that the Trustees are
well informed to arrive at a set of parameters and decisions for the amount of risk they
consider to be acceptable. For example, the Trustees continue to review and question the
Reserves Policy to establish and agree an appropriate level of reserves. With this
information, the Trustees are able to make informed choices about the strategic proposals
put forward by the Chief Executive Officer. The principal risk, which continues to cause
uncertainty for the Trust is lack of clarity about future funding agreements from government.
This risk has been intensified due to the additional and unexpected costs associated with
keeping schools safely open over the period of the Covid-19 pandemic.

To note:

The Trust uses the Government’s Orange Book to support the assessment of major risks to
which the Trust is exposed, in particular those relating to governance, financial management
and school improvement.

1.7 Procurement

Over the reporting year the Trust conducted a large tendering process for a new common
catering provider for all Trust schools. As the tender value was expected to be over
£1,000,000, all general EU public procurement rules were followed (OJEU). The contract
was awarded to Chartwells Schools Dining Services who commenced the contract in part in
April 2020 for four of the nine Trust schools. The remaining five school’s contract’s
commenced in September 2020. The Trust is keen to establish an effective longer-term
partnership with Chartwells to deliver high quality healthy food consistently across all Trust
schools. The Contract will be subject to initial review in December 2020.

Over the reporting year the Trust terminated its financial support contract with drb Schools
and Academies Services Ltd. Although this work was undertaken based on a clearly defined
service level agreement and the services were provided at cost and open book to ensure
Trustees comply with their statutory responsibilities, it was felt the Trust had the capacity to
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take this service internally. This change has now been implemented with early evidence of
positive impact.

1.8 Pay and remuneration of CEO and senior leaders

Full use is being made of the DfE guidance for Academy Trusts on financial benchmarking
and value for money as well as new guidance to support Academy Trusts in setting levels of
pay for executive leaders — Setting Executive Salaries (ESFA July 2019). This ensures the
Board uses all available resource efficiently, benchmarking executive team salaries to those
paid in similar Trusts as a basis for transparency, scrutiny, and challenge.

In addition, the following value for money criteria continue to be used by Trustees when
making senior appointments and associated financial decisions:

economic, efficient, and effective use of all the resources in the Trust’s charge
avoidance of waste and extravagance o
prudent and economical administration of the organisation
establishment and maintenance of a transparent system of financial governance
all financial transactions represent value for money

)

1.9 Reserves Policy and Going Concern Statement

Trustees continue to assess the Trust's approach to financial risk and Trust reserves.
Trustees agree on a deliberately prudent approach to risk and this is the foundation on which
specific scenarios have been costed to provide the Trust with an appropriate margin of
safety.

The Trust's financial modelling means that income and expenditure can be forecast with
reasonably high levels of accuracy. However, the turbulence caused by the Covid-19
pandemic and need to establish a recovery strategy means that Trustees may need to keep
the Reserves Policy under constant review. Caution, prudence, and vigilance will continue to
be paramount to ensure operating efficiency can be maintained without undue course to the
use of reserves.

As a result of this review work and after making appropriate projections, Trustees have
assessed the going concern basis as at the date of the Report and accounts are approved.
They believe that the level of reserves held, and an analysis of the financial risks currently
faced gives sufficient assurance that the Trust continues to be a going concern.

To note:

Trust Going Concern Statement

The Trust Board has a reasonable expectation that the Trust has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence until at least 2022. It continues to adopt the going concern
basis in preparing all financial statements. Further details regarding the adoption of the going
concern basis can be found in the Statement of Accounting Policies.

1.10 Ongoing monitoring and scrutiny
Over the reporting year Trustees have continually monitored the reserves of the Trust and
will continue to do so. This process encompasses the nature of income and expenditure

streams and the need to match commitments with income and the nature of reserves.

It is Trust Board's general policy to build reserves if possible, which can be used for future
educational purposes.
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To note: :

The Trust had total funds at 31 August 2020 of £20,897,330 which included £415,213
restricted funds not available for general purposes of the multi academy trust, £863,683 of
free reserves defined as unrestricted funds available for general purposes and £38,595,434
which can only be realised by the disposal of tangible fixed assets.

The balance on restricted general funds (excluding pension reserve) plus the balance on
unrestricted funds was a surplus of £1,278,896.

In addition, the deficit on the restricted pension fund of £18,977,000 arises from an actuarial
deficit on the local government pension scheme which will be dealt with as advised by the
actuary.

Schools continually utilising surplus funds to set a balanced budget is not appropriate or
financially sustainable. To negate this, Trust schools are required to carry forward surplus
~reserves of at least 5% of their General Annual Grant value within their budgets from one

year to the next. Budgeted cumulative surplus for the 2020/21 financial year is estimated to
be £1,278,896, projecting 8.41% reserves at 31st August 2021, and a 3.41% above required
target.

1.11 Investment Policy

The Trust Board has an /nvestment Policy which allows Trustees to invest to further the
Trust’s educational purpose and vision. The Policy supports financial management and the
tracking of financial exposure and ensures a focus is maintained on achieving value for
money in all transactions and decisions.

In line with Section 2 of the Academies Financial Handbook 2019, the Trust Board always:

e acts within its power as set out in the Articles
e exercises care and due diligence in investment decisions
o takes professional advice as appropriate
e ensures that exposure to investment products is tightly controlled
e prioritises security of funding over revenue maximisation
e ensures that any investment decisions are in the best interests of the Trust
e reviews its Investment Policy and any investments regularly
To note:

The day to day responsibility for managing this function is delegated to the Director of
- - Finance who acts in the capacity of Chief Financial Officer (CFO). '

| 1.12 Trade union facility time

The muiti academy trust does not have any relevant union officials during 2019/20.
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1.13 Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting

~UK Greenhouse gas emissions and energy use data C ‘
for the period 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020 | 2019/2020
Energy consumption used to calculate emissions (kWh) | 4,373,653.00
Energy consumption break down (kWh) (optional):
e Gas 3,375,268.00
e Electricity 984,427.00
o Transport fuel 13,958.00
Scope 1 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e:
o Gas consumption 620.61
o Owned transport — minibuses 0.00
Total Scope 1: 620.61
Scope 2 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e:
e Purchased electricity 229.51
Scope 3 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e:
e Business travel in employee owned vehicles 3.37
Total gross emissions in metric tonnes CO2e 853.49
Intensity ratio Tonnes CO2e per pupil 0.28

Quantification and reporting methodology

The Trust has followed the 2019 HM Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines. The
Trust has also used the GHG Reporting Protocol ~ Corporate Standard and has used the
2020 UK Government's Conversion Factors for Company Reporting.

Intensity measurement

The chosen intensity measurement ratio is total gross emissions in metric tonnes CO2e per
pupil, the recommended ratio for the sector.

Measures taken to improve energy efficiency

During the 2019-20 financial year, the Trust undertook a Utilities tendering exercise for Gas
and Electricity costs. The new contract has been phased in during the financial year as each
school’'s incumbent contract ends. All schools will be on the new Gas and Electricity
contract, provided by British Gas, by April 2021. Mileage across the Trust has been reduced
since the COVID-19 outbreak due to the increasing use of online Microsoft Teams meetings.
This is expected to continue.

1.14 Responsibility of Trustees for the financial statements

As explained fully in Annex ‘A’ Governance Statement, Trustees recognise that they are
responsible for the preparation of the annual financial statements and for being satisfied that
they have given a true and fair view and for such internal control as the Trustees determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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Fundraising
The Trust do not carry out any fundraising practices.
Plans for Future Periods

Plans for the future including the aims and key objectives set, are detailed in the Trust aims
and Improvement activity and also within Business Planning.

Insofar as the Trustees are aware:

e There is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditor is
unaware

e Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of
that information

The Trustees' Report, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the Trust
Board, as the company directors, on 26 January 2021 and signed on the Board’s behalf by:

................................................ David Sheldon - Chair of Trust Board
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1. Scope of responsibility

The information on governance included in this Statement is supplementary to that described in the
Trustees’ Annual Report.

As Trustees of drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for
ensuring the Trust has effective and appropriate systems of control, financial and otherwise. Such
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve our educational
and business objectives and can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

The Trust Board delegates day-to-day responsibility for the running of the Trust to the Chief
Executive Officer/Accounting Officer (CEO) and Director of Finance (CFO). The Chief Executive
Officer (CEO), as Accounting Officer, has full responsibility for ensuring financial controls conform
and are compliant with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management as set
out in the Academies Financial Handbook 2019, ESFA guidance and in accordance with the
requirements and responsibilities assigned to the role in the Funding Agreement between the Trust
and the Secretary of State for Education. The Accounting Officer also has responsibility for
reporting to the Board any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

2. Trustee attendance information
2.1 Trust Board
The Trust Board has formally met six times during the reporting period. Additional Emergency

Meetings were called in order to develop and implement the Trust's response strategy to the
Covid-19 pandemic. Attendance across the reporting period was as follows:

Trustee Meetings Meetings
attended held
David Sheldon (Chair) - 6 6
Viv Randall (Vice-chair) 6 6
Kevin McCabe 5 6
David Peters 6 6
Cheryl Miltard 5 6
lan Swain 5 6
Catherine Gallagher 5 6
Bernard Peters 5 6
" 2.2 Finance Sub-Committee
Trustee Meetings Meetings
attended held
lan Swain (Chair) 4 4
David Sheldon 4 4
Kevin McCabe 3 4
Robert Bowater (CEQ) 4 4
Chris Finnerty (CFQO) 4 4

Page 20



drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee) _ '
Annex A - Governance Statement for the year ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

2.3 Achievement, Support and Scrutiny Sub-Committee

*  Trustee - Meetings Meetings
. - | attended held
Viv Randall (Chair) 4 4
Cheryl Millard 3 4
Kevin McCabe 3 4
Rob Bowater 3 4
James Hill 3 4
Sue Egersdorff 3 4
2.4 Audit and Risk Sub-Committee
Trustee Meetings Meetings
: attended held
David Peters (Chair) 3 3
Rob Bowater 3 3
Chris Finnerty 3 3
Bernard Peters 3 3
Cath Gallagher 3 3

3. Achieving value for money and scope of work

The purpose of this section is to demonstrate to all stakeholders that Trustees use of public assets
has supported the -advancement of education for the pupils in the care of the Trust and provided
value for money during the reporting year. An ongoing strategic objective, alongside the Trust’s
core purpose of raising educational standards, is to achieve value for money not only for the Trust
itself but also for the taxpayer more generally. The intention of Trustees is to continuously improve
both the educational and wider wellbeing outcomes for all pupils within the resources available to
them. The CEO in his role as Trust Accounting Officer has responsibility for ensuring that the Trust
delivers good value in the use of public resources. The CEO understands that value for money
refers to the educational and wider wellbeing outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer
resources received.

Over the reporting year, the CEO as Accounting Officer has considered how the Trust's use of
resources has specifically supported the raising of educational standards across all Trust Schools.
Although Trust Schools are not universally meeting nationally benchmarked standards for reading,
writing and mathematics at Key Stage 2, the Trust is able to demonstrate year on year
improvement. Prior to the pandemic, the Trust was able to demonstrate that with the exception of
reading attainment, data indicates that outcomes have improved, or previous improvements have
‘been maintained. Trustees are very clear that standards are not there yet and improving outcomes
for all pupils was a top priority pre the arrival of Covid-19 and will be the major focus as the Trust
emerges from the pandemic. Trustees are also aware that while, at a Trust-wide level, there have
been improvements, there remains volatility in how well pupils are achieving in individual schools.
This is partly due to continued staffing instability in some schools which is likely to be further
impacted by the pandemic.
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Over the reporting year, more regular reports have been provided to the Trust Board in order to
monitor and maintain oversight of the pandemic. These have continued to highlight how value for
money has been secured and included benchmarked data where appropriate. The CEO as
Accounting Officer has worked to deliver improved value for money during the reporting period as
exemplified through the successful OEJU tender for provision of catering services to the Trust and
the procurement of the required PPE equipment for all schools.

4. Trustee self-review

Over the reporting year Trustees have continued to evaluate their performance and effectiveness.
The Ofsted Summary Evaluation inspection visit in November 2019 found the performance of
Trustees in fulfilling their responsibilities as set out in the DfE Governance Handbook 2019 and
associated Governance Competencies Framework 2019 to be met. However, Trustees are keen to
improve their oversight, challenge, and scrutiny role still further to include:

e the quality and range of performance and benchmarking data presented to Trustees
the depth of knowledge Trustees have about Trust schools. This will be resumed
following the Covid-19 pandemic when Trustees will be able to visit schools safely

o further knowledge and understanding of GDPR requirements. All Trustees have
completed an initial online GDPR training module which will be enhanced through follow-
on modules over the coming year

o the quality and depth of financial reporting and analysis including forecasting data

e Improved governance and oversight of financial functioning of the Trust Improvement
Board

¢ Implementation of the Trust’s plans to implement a Trust GAG pooling model

5. Focus areas 2021-22

e Considering the potential to achieve further improved value for money through cross Trust
procurement approaches for special needs support services, utilities, and IT
Implementing Trust People Plan

Developing a Trust Digital Marketing Strategy

Developing the capacity and capability of the in-house financial management service
Implement digital Trust Risk Register software solution

Review functionality of School Business Managers

6. Next Trust Board Review

The Trust Board intends to conduct its next review, which will be commissioned externally in
November 2021, two years after the Trust's Ofsted Summary Evaluation visit.

7. Internal Controls

The Trust’s systems of internal financial controls and Trust Improvement Board arrangements are
designed to manage risk to an acceptable level recognising that it is difficult to eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. Trustees can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance of effectiveness. The Trust's systems of internal control are based on
processes designed to identify and prioritise significant risks to the achievement of the Trust's
Strategic Plan priorities, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised, the impact should
they be realised, and the actions required to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.
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8. Capacity to handle risk

The Trust Board has a detailed Risk Register which is presented at every Board meeting and
monitored by the Audit and Risk Sub Committee. Risks to which the Trust is exposed together with
the operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those
risks are fully discussed. The Board is of the view that there has been a formal, robust and on-
going process for identifying, evaluating and managing the Trust's significant risks in place for the
reporting period and up to the date of approval of the Annual Report and financial statements. The
Trust’'s Risk Register will be fully transferred to a digital format by January 2021.

9. Risk and control framework

The Trust's system of internal financial control is based on regular management information and
administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and
accountability in line with the Academies Financial Handbook 2019 and full compliance with ESFA
requirements.

It includes: !

e comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic
financial reports which are scrutinised through the Trust Improvement Board/Finance Sub-
Committee process before review and sign off by the Trust Board

e regular reviews by the Finance and Audit and Risk Sub-Committees of reports which

indicate financial performance against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital

works and expenditure programmes

setting Trust and individual school targets to measure financial and other performance

clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines

delegation of authority and segregation of duties

identification, management and mitigation of risks

Over the reporting period, the Trustees have used drb Schools and Academies Services Ltd to
provide an internal audit function to provide an independent oversight of the Trust's financial
affairs.

The main duties of the internal audit function are to provide the Trust with on-going independent
assurance of:

s Compliance
Review and assessment of how the Trust is addressing Annex ‘C’ MUSTS as per the
Academies Financial Handbook 2019.., of the Fraud Policy and attitude to fraud, and
how the Trust is addressing the Charity Commission CC8 checklist

e Strategic
Review and assessment of the Trust's documentation to include:
- Business Continuity Plan and Risk Register
- Segregation of duties and scheme of delegation
- Succession planning
- Compliance visit reports and progress against recommendations
- Budgets
- Management accounts and reporting process
- Board and sub-committee minutes
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¢ Governance
Progress against prior year:
- Management Letter
-Internal Assurance Report
- Website compliance
- Proper convening of board meetings e.g. quorate
- Maintenance of GIAS and Companies House Membeér/Trustee data
- Assessment of any related, connected party issues
- Maintenance of declarations and pecuniary interest register

e Transactional
Appropriate testing of:
- purchases
- bank transactions
- credit cards
- capital works
- tendering and procurement
- payroll administration
- income
- IT procedures

To note:
On a termly basis, the drb Schools and Academies Services Ltd Internal Audit Function reports

are presented to the Trust Board. '
10. Review of effectiveness

As Accounting Officer, Robert Bowater (CEO) has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of
the Trust's systems of internal control. During the reporting period this review activity has been
informed by:

+ the work of the internal reviewer

« the work of the external auditor .

¢ the work of the executive leadership team within the Trust who have responsibility for the
development and maintenance of the internal control framework

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the results of review activity of the
systems of internal control and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement
of the systems is in place.

Approved by order of the members of the board of trustees on 26 January 2021 and signed on its
behalf by: '

e

David Sheldon Robert Bowater
Chair of Trust Board CEO and Accounting Officer
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August 2020

As accounting officer of drb ignite Multi Academy | have considered my responsibility to notify
the multi academy trust board of trustees and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA)
of material irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding
received by the multi academy trust, under the funding agreement in place between the multi
academy trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my consideration | have had
due regard to the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook 2019.

| confirm that | and the multi academy trust board of trustees are able to identify any material
irregular or improper use of funds by the multi academy trust, or material non-compliance with
the terms and conditions of funding under the multi academy trust’s funding agreement and the
Academies Financial Handbook 2019.

I confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have

been discovered to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these
will be notified to the board of trustees and ESFA.

W

..................................... Robert Bowater - Accounting Officer

26 January 2021
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The trustees (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of
company law) are responsible for preparing the Trustees’ Report and the financial
statements in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction published by the
Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

“Company law requires the trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year.
Under company law the trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are
satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the charitable company
and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and
expenditure for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the trustees are
required to:

. select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

. observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academles
Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020;

. make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

. state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to
any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate

to presume that the charitable company will continue in business.

The trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to
show and explain the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the charitable company and enable them to
ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable
company applies financial and other controls which conform with the requirements both of
propriety and of good financial management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants
received from the ESFA/DfE have been applied for the purposes intended.

The trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial
information included on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United
Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements -may differ
from legislation in other jurisdictions. :

Y
Approved by order of the members of the board of trustees on 26 January 2021 and signed
on its behalf by:

.............................................. David Sheldon — Chair of Trustees

Outstanding Excellence ° Impactful : Effective
pupil experience in education teaching partnerships
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Independent Auditor's Report-on the Financial Statements to the Members of

drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust (the 'Multi Academy trust) for the year
ended 31 August 2020 which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the Balance Sheet, the Statement of
Cash Flows and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The
financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable: law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) including Financial Reporting
Standard 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland"”, the Charities SORP
2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020 issued by the Education & Skills Funding Agency.

In our opinion the financial statements .

. give a true and fair view of the state of the multi academy trust's affairs as at 31 August 2020, and of its
incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the period then
ended '

. have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice

. have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. the Charities SORP
2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020 issued by the Education & Skills Funding Agency

Basis for opinion

il
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Multi Academy trust in accordance with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical
Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

\

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report to
you where:

. the trustees’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not
appropriate; or ‘

* the trustees have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may. cast
significant doubt about the Multi Academy trust's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised
for issue.
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Other information

The trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in
the trustees’ annual report , other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Other information
" includes the trustees' report (incorporating the strategic report and the directors’ report), the governance statement,
and the Accounting Officer's statement. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information
and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other .information, we are required to report
that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

. the information given in the trustees’ report (incorporating the strategic report and the directors’ report) for the
financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

. the strategic report and the directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

in the light of our knowledge and understanding of the Multi Academy trust and its environment obtained in the
course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report and the directors’ report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us
to report to you if, in our opinion: 3

. adequate accounting records have not been kept, or
* the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
. certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
~
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Responsibilities for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the trustees’ responsibilities statement (set out on page 26), the trustees (who are also the
directors of the Multi Academy trust for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the
trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for assessing the Multi Academy trust's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing., as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the trustees either intend to. liquidate the Multi Academy trust or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs (UK), we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Multi Academy trust's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the trustees .

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of the trustees’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Multi Academy trust's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists. we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Muilti Academy trust to cease to continue as a going concern.
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drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the Members of drb Ignite Multi
Academy Trust
(continued) '

\

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued)

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial stgtements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

)

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Multi Academy trust's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Multi Academy trust's
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Multi Academy
trust and the Multi Academy trust's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have

formed. -

Vet

o~

David W Farnsworth FCA (Senior Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of Feltons, Statutory Auditor ~
8 Sovereign Court ‘ V
8 Graham Street

Birmingham B1 3JR

27 January 2021
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drb ignite Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Independent Reporting Accountant's Assurance Report on Regularity to drb Ignite Multi Academy
Trust and the Education and Skills Funding Agency

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 23 June 2016 and further to the requirements of the
Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020, we
have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and income
received by drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust during the year 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020 have been applied
to the purposes identified by Palrliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our
engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust and
ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest éxtent permitted by
law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust and ESFA, for
our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of drb Multi Academy Trust’'s accounting officer and the reporting accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust's funding agreement
with the Secretary of State for Education dated 25 September 2015 and the Academies Financial Handbook, extant
from 1 September 2019, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes
intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s ethical guidance
and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the requirements of the
Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020. We report to you whether anything has come to our attention in
carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and income received during
the year 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the
financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020 issued by ESFA.
We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the
Multi Academy Trust's income and expenditure.

The work undertaken to draw our conclusion includes :
*  Consideration of the applicable legislation and the multi academy trust's funding agreement
*  Review and evaluation of the multi academy trust's system of internal controls
«  Examination and assessment of the Accounting Officer's statement on Regularity, Propriety and Compliance

*  Examination, on a test basis, of third party evidence supporting income and expenditure
*  Review of exceptional and unusual items
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drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Independent Reporting Accountant's Assurance Report on Regularity to drb Ignite Multi Academy
Trust and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (continued)

Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the
expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020 has not been
applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which
govern them.

(}f-QQ'g:»s

David W Farnsworth FCA (Reporting Accountant)
For and on behalf of Feltons, Statutory Auditor

8 Sovereign Court

8 Graham Street

Birmingham B1 3JR

27 January 2021
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drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust

{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

‘Statement of financial activities for the year ended 31 August 2020

u

(including income and expenditure account)

Income from :

Donations and capital grants
Transfer of pension liability
Transfers from local authority on
conversion '

Charitable activities :

Funding for the academy trust's
educational operations
Other trading activities

Investments

Total

Expenditure on :

Charitable activities:
Academy trust educational
operations

Other costs on conversion

Total

Net income/(expenditure) before
transfers R

Transfers between funds

Net income/{expenditure) after
transfers

Other recognised gains/(losses)

Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined
benefit pension schemes

Net movement in funds
Reconciliation of funds

Total funds brought forward

Total funds carried forward

Restricted Restricted Restricted
Unrestricted pension general fixed asset Total Total
funds fund funds funds 2019/20 2018/19
Notes £ £ £ £ £ £

2 - - - 503.274 503.274 591.753

- (750.000) - (750.000) -

fi
. . - - - 1,181,237
3

214,387 - 19761979 - 19.976.3686 19.165.347
49,587 - - - 49,587 48,623
574 - - - 574 1.545
264,548 {750.000) 19,761,979 503.274 19,779,801 20.988.506
6 616,496 793.000 19,310,889  1,223.414 21,948,799 21.364.069
- - - - - 10.691
615,496 798.000 19,310,889 1,223,414 21,948,799 21,374,760
(351.948; (1.548.000) 451,090 (720.140) (2,158.998) (386.254)

15 - - (45.470) 45.470 - =
{351.943) {1.548.000) 405,620 (674,57C) {2,153,998) (386,254)
15, 24 - (1.159.000) - {1,199.000} (2.615.000)
(351.943) (2,747,000} 405,620 (674.870) (3,367.993) (3.001,254)
16 1,215.631 (16,230.000) 9.593 39,270,104 24,255.328 27,266,582
863,683 (13.977,000) 415,213 38,595,434 20.397.330 24,265,328

All of the- Academy's activities derive from continuing operations during the above two financial periods.
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drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Company number : 09284055
Balance sheet as at 31 August 2020

Fixed assets
Tangible assets

Current assets
Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

Liabilities
Creditors: amounts falling
due within one year

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

Creditors: amounts falling
due after more than one year

Net assets excluding pension liability
Defined benefit pension scheme liability

Total net assets

Funds of the academy trust :

Restricted funds
Fixed asset fund
Restricted income fund
Pension reserve

Total restricted funds

Unrestricted income funds

Total funds

Notes

12

13

14(a)

14(b)

24

15
15
15

15

2020

38,429,230

739,549

2,878,630

3,618,179

1,986,428

1,631,751

40,060,981

(186,651)

39,874,330

(18,977,000)

20,897,330

38,595,434
415,213

{18,977,000)

20,033,647

863,683

20,897,330

2019

39,032,642

748,153

2,518,958

3,267,111

1,610,031

1,657,080

40,689,722

(194,394)
40,495,328
(16,230,000)

24,265,328

39,270,104
9,593

(16,230,000)

23,049,697

1,215,631

24,265,328

The financial statements on pages 33 to 57 were approved by the trustees, and authorised for issue on 26 January 2021

and are signed on their behalf by:

David Sheldon - Chair of Trustees
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drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 August 2020

Notes 2019/20 2018/19
£ £

Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash provided by operating activities 19 483,950 229,882
Cash transferred on conversion to academy trust - 106,919
Cash flows from investing activities 20 (1 16,154) (216.484)
Cash flows from financing activities ' 21 (8.124) (7.444)
359.672 112,873
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 September 2019 2,518,958 2,406,085
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 August 2020 22 2,878,630 2,518,958

\
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drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2020

1. Accounting policies

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except where
noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

'Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the multi academy: trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been
prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable
in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of
Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of lreland (FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the
Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020 issued by ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act
2006.

drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102.

Going concern

The trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any material
uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the company to
continue as a going concern. The trustees make this assessment in respect of a year of at least one year from
the date of autharisation for issue of the financial statements and have concluded that the multi academy trust
has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and there are no
material uncertainties about the muiti academy trust’s ability to continue as a going concern, thus they continue
to adopt the going concern basis'of accounting in preparing the financial statements.

Income

All incoming resources are recognised when the multi academy trust has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is
probable and the amount can be measured reliably.

. Grants
Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The balance of
income received for specific purposes but not expended during the year is shown in the relevant funds
on the balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting ‘any performance-related
conditions there is not unconditional entittement to the income and its recognition is deferred and
included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where
entitiement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the year for which
it is receivable and any abatement in respect of the year is deducted from income and recognised as a
liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent
amounts of capital grants are reflected in the balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital
grants are recognised when there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which
they are expended.

. Donations .
Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions)
where the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.
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drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

1. Accounting policies (continued)

Tangible fixed assets (continued)

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid :of specific grants, either from the government or
from the private sector, they are included in the Balance Sheet at cost and depreciated over their expected
useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding requiring the continued use of
the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities
and carried forward in the Balance Sheet. Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to the.
restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been
acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Depreciation is: provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land and assets under construction, at
rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset over its expected useful life as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings - straight line over 50 years
Fittings and equipment - 15% straight line
Computer hardware - 20-25% straight line

Assets in the course of construction are included at cost. Depreciation on these assets is not charged until they
are brought into use and reclassified to freehold or leasehold land and buildings.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed assets

- and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised in the
Statement of Financial Activities. ’ '

Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past event, it is
probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount of the settlement
can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the academy trust anticipates it will pay
to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the goods or services it must
provide.

Financial instruments

The academy trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined by FRS 102. The financial assets and
financial liabilities of the academy trust and their measurement basis are as follows :

Financial assets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments measured
at amortised cost. Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial liabilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments and are measured at
amortised cost. Taxation and social security are not included in the financial instruments disclosure definition.
Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and
there is an obligation to deliver services rather than cash or another financial instrument.

Leased assets

Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight line basis over the lease term.
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drb Ignite Muiti Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

1. Accounting policies (continued)

Taxation

The multi academy trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 7
2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.

Accordingly, the multi academy trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains
received within categories covered by part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the
Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to
charitable purposes.

Pension benefits

Retirement benefits to employees of the multi academy trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme
('TPS") and the Local Government Pension Scheme ('LGPS'). These are defined benefit schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions over
employees’ working lives with the academy trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level
percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the Government
Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded
multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign between employers. Consequently, the TPS is
treated as a defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the
period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the multi
academy trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and
liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate
equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the
liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at each balance sheet date.
The amounts charged to net income/(expenditure) are the current service costs and the costs of scheme
introductions, benefit changes. settlements and curtaiiments. They are included as part of staff costs as
incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of Financial
Activities and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme
assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the year by the rate
used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets and
the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.
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drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2020 (continued)
1. Accounting policies (continued)

Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charitable objects of the multi academy trust at the discretion of the trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to .specific capital purposes imposed by
funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds réceived with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Education and Skills Funding Agency or Department for Education.

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The multi academy trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carryi'ng amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number of
factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in
determining the net cost (income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions,
which are disclosed in note 24, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability. Furthermore a roll
forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2016 has
been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31 August 2020. Any differences between the
figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying
amount of the pension liability. ’
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drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

2. Donations and capital grants

/

Capital grants
Other donations

Transfers from local authority on
conversion

2019 total

Analysis of restricted funds transferred
from local authority : .
Restricted pension fund

3. Funding for the multi academy trust's educational operations

DfE/ESFA grants

General Annual Grant (GAG)
Other DfE Group grants
Start up grant

Other government grants

Local authority grants
Exceptional government funding
Coronavirus exceptional support

Other income from the academy
trust's educational operations

2019 total

Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset 2019/20 2018/19
funds funds funds Total Total
£ £ £ £ £

- - 503,274 503,274 567,012

- - - - 24,741

- - 503,274 503.274 591,753

- - - - 1,181,237

- - 503,274 503,274 1,772,990
131,660 (1,102,000) 2,743,330 1,772,990

(1,102,000)
(1.102,000)
Restricted Restricted
Unrestricted general fixed asset 2019/20 2018/19
funds fund funds Totai Total
£ £ £ £ £

- 15,200,782 - 15,200.732 14,750,614

- 3.401,579 - 3,401,579 2,788,270

- - - 70.000

18,602,361 18,602,361 17,608,884

- 1.151,037 - 1.151,037 1,089,690

- 8,581 - 8.581 -

- 1.159.618 1,159,618 1,089.690
214,387 - - 214387 466,773
214,387 1,159,618 - 1,374,005 1,556,463
214,387 19,761,979 - 19.976,366 19,165,347
347,336 18,818,011 19,165,347
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drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

3. Funding for the Academy Trust's educatioﬁal operations (continued)

The academy trust has been eligible to claim additional funding in the period from government support schemes
in response to the coronavirus outbreak. The funding received is shown above under “exceptional government
funding"”.

« The funding received for coronavirus exceptional support covers £8,581 of catering costs. These costs .are
included in notes 6 and 7 below as appropriate.

4. Other trading activities

Unrestricted Restricted 2019/20 2018/19
funds funds Total Total
£ . £ . £ £
Hire of facilities 49,587 - 49,587 48,623
49,587 - 49,587 48,623
2019 total 48,623 48.623
5. Investment income
Unrestricted Restricted 2019/20 2018/19
funds funds Total Total
£ £ £ £ .
Short term deposits 574 - 574 1,546
2019 total 1,546 - 1,546
6. Expenditure
Staff Non pay expenditure 2019/20 2018/19
costs Premises Other . Total Total
£ £ £ £ £
Academy's educational
operations
Direct costs 12.893,247 756,499 1.053,209 14,702,955 14,212,215
Allocated support costs 4,197.335 1,163.736 1,884,773 7,245,844 7.151,854
17,090,582 1,920,235 2,937,982 21,948,799 21,364,069
2019 total 16,199,668 1.813.355 3.351,046 21,364,069

Net income/(expenditure) for the period includes :

2019/20 2018/19
£ £

Operating leases - plant and machinery 117,874 16,744
- other, 40.145 33,488
Depreciation . 1,223,414 1,174 615
Interest paid on equal pay loan 5.484 4,653
Fees payable to auditor - audit 28.600 27,750

- other services 570 -
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drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

7. Charitable activities

Educational operations

Direct costs
Support costs

2019 total

Analysis of support costs

Support staff costs
Depreciation
Technology costs
Premises costs

Other support costs
Governance costs

Total support costs

2019 total

8. Staff
a) Staff costs

Staff costs during the year were:

Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Pension costs

Agency staff costs
Staff restructuring costs

Restricted Other
Unrestricted pension restricted 2019/20 2018/19
funds fund funds Total Total
£ £ £ £ £
123,397 - 14,579,558 14,702,955 14,212,215
493,099 798,000 5,054,745 7,245,844 7,151,854
616,496 798,000 20,534,303 21,948,799 21,364,069
765,525 813,000 19,785,544  21,364.069
- 798,000 3.399,335 4,197,335 3,961,267
- - 466,915 466,915 387,493
- - 156,474 156,474 6,177
49,588 - 828,537 878,125 718,525
443,511 1.074,237 1,517.748 2,052,808
- - 29,247 29,247 25,584
493,099 798,000 5,954,745 7.245,844 7,151,854
540,849 813,000 5,795,005 7.151,854
2019/20 2018/19
£ £

11,557,482 10957672
1,080,743 997,664
3.678.630 3,151,281
16,316,855 15,106,617
763.827 1,093,051

9,900 -
16,199,668
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drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

8. Staff (continued)

b) Staff severance payments

There were two non-statutory/non-contractual severance agreements issued during the year that required
payments of £9,900 to be made. Individually these were £6,500 and £3,400 (2019: £nil).

c) Staff numbers

The average number of persons employed by the academy during

the year was as follows: 2019/20 2018/19
Number Number
Teachers 179 184
Administration and support 336 339
Management 7 6
522 529

d) Higher paid staff

2019/20 2018/19
Number Number
The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension
costs) exceeded £60,000 was :

£60,001 - £70,000
£70,001 - £80,000
£80,001 - £90,000
£90,001 - £100,000
£110,001 - £120,000

[ = <
N OO

e) Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the multi academy trust comprise the trustees and the senior management
team as listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension contributions and
employer national insurance contributions) received by key management personnel for their services to the muilti
academy trust was £410,305 (2019 : £445,362).
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

9. Central sérvices

The academy trust has provided the following central services to its academies during the year :

Category Basis -
Audley Primary School 6% of general annual grant
Beechwood Church of England Primary School 6% of general annual grant
Hob Green Primary School . 6% of general annual grant
Jervoise School 6% of general annual grant
Princethorpe Infant School 6% of general annual grant
Princethorpe Junior School 6% of general annual grant
The Bromley - Pensnett Primary School 6% of general annual grant
The Oval School 6% of general annual grant
‘Wychall Primary School 6% of general annual grant

The actual amounts charged during the year were as follows :

2019/20" 2018/19
’ £ £

Audley Primary School 229,557 155,466
Beechwood Church of England Primary School 61,182 49,801
Hob Green Primary School 60,600 41,520
Jervoise School 62,376 41,336
Princethorpe Infant School . 57,206 38,451
Princethorpe Junior School 71,759 29,841
The Bromley - Pensnett Primary School 72,556 50,688
The Oval School 169,521 112,633
Wychall Primary School 120,171 102,097

904,928 621,833

10. Related Party Transactions - Trustees’ remuneration and expenses
One or more trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from employment with the muilti

academy trust. The principal and other staff trustees only receive remuneration in respect of services they provide
undertaking the roles of principal and staff members under their contracts of employment.

The value of trustees' remuneration and other benefits was as follows :
Kevin McCabe (staff trustee)
Remuneration £60,000 - £65,000 (2019 : £60,000 - £65,000)

Employer's pension contributions paid £nil (2019 ; Enil)

During the year ended 31 August 2020, travel and subsistence expenses totalling £76 (2019 : £449) were
reimbursed or paid directly to two (2019 : four) trustees.

Other related party transactions involving the trustees are set out in note 25.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

11. Trustees’ and officers' insurance

The academy trust has opted into the Department for Education's risk protection arrangement (RPA), an
alternative to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects trustees and
officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on academy business, and
provides cover up to £10,000,000. It is not possible to quantify the trustees and officers indemnity element from
the overall cost of the RPA scheme.

12. Tangible fixed assets

~ Leasehold Fittings
land and and Computer
buildings equipment hardware Total
£ £ £ £

Cost or valuation
At 1 September 2019 - 40,574,124 909,267 1,118,177 42,601,568
Additions 514,998 45,575 59,429 620.002
At 31 August 2020 41,089,122 954,842 1,177,606 43,221,570
Depreciation
Al 1 September 2019 2,508,466 340.407 720,053 3,568,926
Charge for the year 819,767 140,335 263,312 1,223.414
At 31 August 2020 3,328,233 480,742 983,365 4,792,340
Net'book values
At 31 August 2020 37.760.889 474,100 194,241 38,429,230
At 31 August 2019 38,065,658 568,860 398,124 39,032.642

Leasehold property's were valued by The Valuation Office Agency — DVS on the following dates:

"- 1 October 2015
-1 April 2016
- 1 September 2016
i -1 October 2016
- 1 November 2016
- 1 March 2019

" Fittings and equipment and computer hardware were valued as at the same date by the trustees. The basis on
which the valuations were made was depreciated replacement cost.
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(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2020 {continued)

12. Tangible fixed assets (continued)

13.

14.

Cost-or valuation at 31
August 2020 is
represented by :

Valuation in 2016
Valuation in 2017
Valuation in 2019
Cost

Debtors

Debtors from operations
VAT recoverable

. Prepayments and accrued income

Creditors

(a) Amounts falling due within one year :

Creditors from operations
Accruals and deferred income
Other creditors

Loans

Deferred income

Deferred income at 1 September 2019
Resources deferred in the year
Amounts released from previous years

Deferred income at 31 August 2020

Leasehold Fittings
land and and Computer
buildings equipment hardware Total
£ £ £ £
15,741,090 169,290 248,630 16,159,010
20,703,601 279,519 542,303 21,525,423
2,162,000 2,404 11,914 2,176,318
2,482,431 503,629 374.759 3.360.819
41,089,122 954,842 1,177,606 43,221,570
2020 2019
£ £
32,294 19,599
10.553 112,524
695,702 616,030
739,549 748,153
2020 2019
£ £
- 3,103
871,295 754,225
. 1,107,010 844,199
8,123 8.504
1,986,428 1,610,031
179,958 209,221
184,638 179,958
(179,958) (209,221)
184,638 179,958

At the balance sheet date the multi academy trust was holding funds received in advance for the provision
of universal infant free school meals and other amounts relating to the period after the balance sheet date.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

14. Creditors (continued)

(b) Amounts falling due after more than one year :

2020 2019
£ e
Other creditors 186,651 194,394

Other creditors due after more than one year represents two loans from Dudley Metropolitan Borough
Council repayable in yearly instaiments. The loans are charged at the following annual interest rates;
Authority's actual General Fund Borrowing Rate (currently approximately 2.4%) and 2.5%. The amount

repayable after more than five years is £153,100 (2019:

shown in note 14(a).

£160,378). The amount due within one year is

15. Funds
Balance at Gains, Balance at
1 September losses and 31 August
2019 Income Expenditure transfers 2020
£ £ £ £ £
Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG) 212,491 15,200,782 (14,744,208) (59.077) 509.983
Pupil premium - 2,275,297 (2.275.297) - -
LA (deficit) on conversion (202,898) : (5,484) 13,607 (194.775)
Other grants - 2.285,900  (2.285.900) - -
9,593 19,761,979 (19,310,889) (45.470) 415,213
Restricted fixed asset funds
Transfer on conversion 36,632,282 - (1,011.596) - 35.620,686
DfE Group capital grants 1,967,425 503,274 (128,451) - 2,342,248
Capital expenditure from GAG 609,471 - (78.803) 45,470 578.138
Other capital grants 42,635 - (657) - 41,978
From unrestricted funds 18,291 - (5,907) - 12,384
39,270,104 503,274  (1.223.414) 45470  38,595.434
Pension reserve (16,230.000) (750.000) (798,000) (1.199.000) (18,977,000)
Total restricted funds 23,049,697 19,515,253 (21.332.303) (1,199.000) 20.033,647
Unrestricted funds
Other income 1,215,631 264,548 {616.496) - 863,683
Total unrestricted funds 1,215,631 264,548 (616,495) - 863,683
Total funds 24,265,328 19,779,801 (21,948,799) (1,199.000) 20.897,330
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

15. Funds (continued)
The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

Restricted general funds
These comprise all restricted funds other than restricted fixed asset funds and include grants from The Education
and Skills Funding Agency, Birmingham City Council and Dudley Metropolitan Council.

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the multi academy trust was not subject to a limit on the
amount of GAG that it could carry forward at 31 August 2020. ‘

Unrestricted funds
These comprise resources that may be used towards meeting any of the charitable. objects of the multi academy
trust at the discretion of the trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds

These comprise resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by The Education and
Skills Funding Agency, Birmingham City Council and Dudley Metropolitan Council where the asset acquired or
created is held for a specific purpose.

Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows :

Balance at Gains, Balance at
1 September losses and 31 August
2018 Income Expenditure transfers 2019
£ £ £ £ £
Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG) 218,391 14,750,614 (14.548,570) (208,944) 212.4§1
Pupil premium - 2,183,042 (2.183.042) - -
LA (deficit) on conversion (210,342) - (4.653) 12,097 (202,393)
Other grants - 1,884,355  (1.884,355) -
3.049 18,818,011 (18,5621.620) (194.847) 9,593
Restricted fixed asset funds .
Transfer on conversion 35,460,782 2,176,318 (1.004,818) 36,632.282
DfE Group capital grants 1,493,690 567,012 (93.277) - 1,967,425
Capital expenditure from GAG 485,376 - (70,752) 194,847 609,471
Other capital grants 45,861 - (3.228) - 42,635
From unrestricted funds 20,833 - (2.542) - 18,291
37,506,542 2,743,330  (1,174,615) 194,847 39.270,104
Pension reserve (11,700.000) {1,102.000) (813.000) (2.615,000) (16,230,000)
Total restricted funds 25,814,591 20,459,341 (20.609.235) (2.615.000) 23,049,697
Unrestricted funds
Transfer on conversion - 106,919 (106.919) - -
Other income 1,451,991 422,246 (658,506) - 1.215,631
Total unrestricted funds 1,451,991 529,165 (765,525) 1,215,631
Total funds 27,266,582  20.988,506 (21,374,760) (2,615,000) 24,265,328
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

15. Funds (continued)

Total funds analysis by academy

Fund balances at 31 August 2020 were allocated as follows :

2019720 2018/19
Total Total
£ £
Audley Primary School 185,354 87,576
Beechwood Church of England Primary School 355,982 335,110
Hob Green Primary School (267.519) (206,883)
Jervoise School . 263.735 250,387
Princethorpe Infant School 162,491 173.631
Princethorpe Junior School 110,931 119,530
The Bromley - Pensnett Primary School (102.223) ‘ (30,921)
The Oval School 652,706 496,470
Wychall Primary School ‘ 46,100 106,017
Trust (128.861) {105.893)
Total before fixed assets and pension reserve 1,278.896 1,225,224
Restricted fixed asset fund 38,585,434 39,270,104
Pension reserve (18,977,000) (16.230,000)
Total funds 20,897,330 24,265,328

Hob Green Primary School is carrying a net deficit of £267,519 on funds before fixed assets and pension reserve
due to the Equal Pay Loan which has been transferfed to the academy on conversion from Dudley MBC. The
total loan is payable on a 4% reducing basis over 25 years, in which the yearly repayment is factored in the
school budget each financial year.

The Bromley-Pensnett Primary School is carrying a net deficit of £102,223 on funds before fixed assets and
pension reserve due to the school running a historic 1.5 form entry PAN, the difference in pupil numbers across
the school years have caused higher staffing costs. The Trust has now applied for the PAN to be reduced to a 1
form entry school. This will reduce the excess staffing costs once the 0.5 entry has flushed through the school.

The Central Trust is carrying a net deficit of £128,661 on funds before fixed assets and pension reserve due to
the full time salaries being brought in to the central Trust since the FNtI.

The trust is taking action to return these funds to surplus. From September 2020 the Trust will transition away
from the historic membership fee and implement GAG Pooling as the Trust financial model. This transition will
help the schools who have fallen in to a net deficit position and the Executive team will work closely with the
budget and future year projections.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

15. Funds (continued)

Total cost analysis by academy

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows :

Teaching & Other
educational Other costs
support support Educational (excluding 2019/20
staff costs staff costs supplies depreciation) Total
£ £ € £ £
Audley Primary School 3,169,961 830.591 149,178 650,835 4,800,565
Beechwood Church of England
Primary School 774,194 203.421 17,216 212,652 1,207,483
Hob Green Primary, School 1.214,838 348,770 19,187 268.466 1,851,261
Jervoise School 821,079 232,204 28,361 239,541 1,321,185
Princethorpe Infant School 849,301 305,038 16,580 183.053 1.353.972
Princethorpe Junior School 936,413 369,278 24,860 163,931 1,494,482
The Bromley - Pensnett Primary
School . 1.094,197 270,581 14,076 302,709 1,681,563
Tha Oval School ’ 2,229,801 803.314 53,929 493,141 3,380,185
Wychall Primary School 1,794,744 445,440 31.737 411,546 2.5683.467
Trust 8,719 588,698 468 353,337 951,222
Academy trust 12,893,247 4,197,335 355.592 3,279,211 20,725,385
2019 total 12,238,401 3,961 ,267 475,083 3,525,394 20,200,145
16. Analysis of net assets between funds
Fund balances at 31
August 2020 are Restricted Restricted Restricted
represented by: Unrestricted  pension general fixed asset Total
funds funds funds funds funds
£ £ £ £ £
Tangible fixed assets - - - 38,429,230  38,429.230
Current assets 863.683 - 2,588,292 166,204 3.618.179
Current liabilities - - (1.986.428) - (1,986,428)
863,683 - 601,864 38,595434 40,060.981

Creditors due after one year - - (188.651) - {186.551)
Pension scheme liability - (18,977,000) - - {13,977.,000)
Total net assets 863,683 (18,977,000) 415213 38,595,434 20.897.330
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16. Analysis of net assets between funds (continued)

17.

18.°

Comparative information in respect of
the preceding period is as follows :

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

Restricted  Restricted Restricted
Unrestricted pension general fixed asset Total
funds funds funds funds funds
£ £ £ £ £

Tangible fixed assets - - - 39,032,642  39.032,642
Current assets 1,215,631 - 1,814,018 237,462 3,267,111
Current liabilities - - (1.610.031) - (1.610,031)
1,215,631 - 203,987 39,270,104 40,689,722
Creditors due after one year - - (194,394) - (194,394)

0

Pension scheme liability (16,230,000) -

(16,230.000)

Total net assets ' 1,215,631  (15,230.000) 9,593 38,270,104 24,265,328
Capital commitments
2020 2019
£ £
Contracted for but not provided in the financial statements ’49,000 171.000
Commitments under operating leases
At 31 August 2020 the total of the multi academy
trust's future minimum lease payments under non-
canceliable operating leases was:
Land and buildings Other
Total Total Total Total
2020 2019 2020 2019
£ £ £ £
Amounts due within one year 45,211 34,248 15,438 37,687
Amounts due between one and five years - - 5,530 20.968
45,211 34,248 20.968 58.655
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Notes. to the financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

19.

20.

21.

22.

Reconciliation of net income/(expenditure) to net cash flow
from operating activities

Net income/(expenditure) for reporting year (as per the SoFA)

Adjusted for :
Depreciation (note 12)
Capital grants from DfE and other capital income
Cash transferred on conversion to multi academy trust
Assets transferred on conversion to muiti academy trust
Interest receivable (note 5)
Pension liability transferred in {note 24)
Defined benefit pension scheme obligation inherited (note 24)
Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable (note 24)
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost (note 24)
Decrease in debtors
Increase in creditors

Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received

Purchase of tangible fixed assets

Capital grants from DfE Group

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Loan repayments in period

Net cash used in financing activities

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank and in hand
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2019/20
Total
€

® (2,168,998)

2018/19
. Total
£
(388.254)

1,223,414 1,174,615
(503,274) (587,012)
- (106.919)

- (2.176,318)

(574) (1,546)
750,000 -

- 1,102,000
503,000 501,000
295,000 312,000

8.604 40,607
376,778 337,709
483,950 229,382

2019/20 2018/19
Total Total
£ £
574 1,546
(620,002) (785,042)
503,274 567.012
(116.154) (216,484)
2019/20 2018/19
Total Total

£ £

(8.124) (7.444)

(8.124) (7,444)

At At
31 August 31 August
2020 2019
£ £
2.878,630 2,518,958
2.878.630 2,518,958




drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2020 {(continued)

23. Member's liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of it
being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a member, such amount
as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before he/she ceases to be a
member.

24. Pension and similar obligations

The multi academy trust's employees belong to two p}incipal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for
non-teaching staff, which is managed by West Midlands Pension Fund. Both are multi-employer defined-benefit
schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the year ended 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS 31 March
2016.

Contributions amounting to £387,738 (2019 : £256,123) were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2020 and are
included within creditors.

Teachers' Pension Scheme

Introduction

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TFS) is a statutory. contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the
Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for teachers in academies. All teachers
have the option to opt-out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a percentage
of salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by
. public funds provided by Parliament.

Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS in
accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published by
HM Treasury every four years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial
scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and many
other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2016. The valuation report
was published by the Department for Education on 5 March 2019. The key elements of the valuation and
subsequent consultation are :

* employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% employer administration
charge)

+ total scheme liabilities {pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for service
to the effective date of £218,100 million, and notional assets (estimated future contributions together with
the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £196,100 million giving a notional past service deficit
of £22,000 miltion

- the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. The current SCAPE rate
is 2.4% above the rate of CPI, assumed real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of prices and 2% in excess of
earnings. The rate of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The assumed nominal rate of return
including earnings growth is 4.45%.

Page 54



GG abed

160'¢ 690'¢ 1612 A% 4 1502 201as pajosloiy
182'92 si1z'22 ¥85'8¢ 0£8'22 uonebiqo |.jo) Jo anjeA Juasald

$000.3 $000.3 $000.3 $000.3

Jeah | - ed %40 - ed %10 -
yie'e 1612 190C zeL'e 1509 8213s pajoaloly
216'82 £91v'82 16022 0€8'L2 uonebi|go (o} Jo anjea jussaid

$000.3 $000.3 $000.3 $000.3

Jeak + ed %10+ ed%l0+
Aoueyjoadxa ajes ajes pasolasip

ay | 142 - Junoasig sy sishjeve Ajinnisuag
%00°0S %00°0S swns dwnj 0} suoisuad jo uoBINWWOY)
%022 %0¢°¢ (1d2) vondwnsse uoijeyu|
%061 %G9\ SaIjIgel) 3WaY2s 10j 3)eJ JUNOISI
%022 %622 uonejul 7 JuswAed u) SuoISuUad Jo) asealoul Jo dley
%0/2°C %G6Z'E . S9LRIRS Ul 3SB3IDUI JO 1By

6102 isnbny 0zog 1snbny
LE W LEW suondwnsse |elzenjoe jediouind

"sJeak O¢ Xau ay)
J8A0 saAg) Buipuny |BWIOU O} LUOIIPPE Ul SUOHNQUIUOD |BUCHIPPE 3XBW |IM JSNJ) ayj jey) paalbe aney saa)sni) ayt

‘€10z AInr gL uo 320y OjJul 3wWed I3juesend ay) "uoneonpl
Joy JuswyedaQ ay) AqQ 13w aq PINOm SBAIE] SWAYIS UDISUIJ JUBWUIBA0S (BI07] Buipuelsino 'ainsojo Awapeoe
J0 JUaA3 ay) ul Jey) aajuelenb e o) ‘uoieanp3 Joj alelS Jo AUB12193S dY) Jo }sanbal ay) je ‘paasbe sey juaweled

‘S3aA0|dwa JOJ Y%p L | PUR 9%G'G UBaMIaq
pue ssehoidwa Joj 9,¢’ Lz BJe SJedA aunmny Joj sajes uonnguuod paasbe ayl (000°ZELI : 6102) 000'9v23
pajjelo) suonnguuod saskoldwe pue (000'922°13 © 6102) 000'GLZ'L3 PRI SUOINQINUOY s J3Ao|dwa yoiym
10 '(000'80S'L3 : 6102) 000'12S L3 sem 0z0z isnbny | ¢ papua Jeak ay) Joj apew uoyNGUIUOd [Bjo} 8yl 'spuny
paJajsiviLpe-a2isny) ajesedas ul play S19sSe ayl yim ‘awayds uoisuad jyausaq psuyap papuny B St S49O7 8yl

2WIYIS UOISUIH JUBWUIDAOK) |EDOT

A "8WBYDS 3Y) UO I|EJIBAR UONRWIOUI Y] dAOGR N0 18S SBeyY Jsny)
Awapede ay ] "aWayds uolNGUIUCD PaULAP B 8JaM }i Ji SB BWaYds ay) 0] SUOIHNGIILOD S} Joj PBJUNOISE Sey Jsn)
Awoapese ay] "swayds uoisuad Jakojdwa-nw papunjun ue st S41 aY) ‘Z0} SY4 U1 IN0 13s suouyap 3y} J1apun

"8]ISQaM SUOISURd ,SJ3YOEa ) 3ay) uo S| uoneuawnoop Buipoddns pue podas uonenjea ay) jo Adoo vy
(20%'000°13 : 6102) £20°00S" 13 O} pejunowe Jesh ayl.ut S 01 pred S)sod uoisuad s Jakojdws ay ).

€20z dy | woyy pajuawsa|dwi 3q 0) 8NP SI UCHEN|BA IX8U 8y

(panunuoo) 3wWaYIg UOISUI ,SI3Yo8a] 3y} JO UCIEN|BA

(panunuoo) suonebijqo Jejiwis pue uoisudd v

(panunuod) bz_oz ysnbny L¢ papua 1834 ayj 10 SJUBSWSIR)S |BloUBUL SU] O] SOJON

(eajueseno Ag paywiy Auedwo) y)
ysni) Awapesy yiny enub) qip



drb Ignite Multi Academy Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2020 (continued)

24. Pension and similar obligations (continued)

Local Government Pension Scheme: (continued)

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for
future improvements in mortality rates. The assumed life At 31 At 31
expectations on retirement age 65 are: August 2020 August 2019

Retiring today

Males 21.9 20.9

Females 241 23.2
Retiring in 20 years

Males 23.8 226

Females 26.0 25.1
The academy trust's share of the assets in the scheme was : 31 August 31 August

2020 2019
£ £

Equities 5,398,000 4,495,000
Government bonds 1,042,000 708,000
Other bonds 372,000 282,000
Property 724,000 609,000
Cashl/liquidity 636,000 270,000
Other : 1,431,000 1,109,000 ¢
Total market value of assets 9,603,000 7.473.000

The actual return on scheme assets was £778,000 (2019 : £413,000).

2019/20 2018/19
£ £
Amount recognised in the statement of financial activities
Current service cost 1,773,000 1,776,000
Net interest cost 295,000 312,000
Administration expenses 5.000 1,000
Total amount recognised in the SOFA 2,073,000 2,089,000
Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations
were as follows : 2019/20 2018/19
£ £

At 1 September 2019 23,703,000 17,392,000
Transfer in pension liability 750,000 -
Conversion of academy trusts ' - 1,102,000
Current service cost 1.773,000 1,439,000
Interest cost 449,000 483,000
Employee contributions . 246,000 232,000
Changes in financial assumptions 1,965,000 3.882,000
Benefits paid (118,000) (133.000)
Experience gain on defined benefit obligation (845,000) -
Changes in demographic assumptions 657,000  (1,025,000)
Past service cost ] - 337.000
At 31 August 2020 28,580,000 23,703.000
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24. Pension and similar obligations {continued)

25.

Local Government Pension Scheme (continued)

Changes in the fair value of academy's share of scheme assets

were as follows : 2019/20 2018/19
£ £

At 1 September 2019 7.473.000 5,692,000
Interest income 154,000 171,000
Return on assets less interest 624,000 242,000
Employer contributions 1,275,000 1,276,000
Employee contributions 246,000 232,000
Benefits paid (118.000) (139,000)
Other actuarial (46.000) -

Administration expenses (5.000) (1,000)
At 31 August 2020 9.603,000 7,473,000
Net pension scheme liability (18.977.000) (16,230,000)

Related party transactions

Owing to the nature of the acadamy trust and the composition of the board of trustees being drawn from local
public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the trustees have
an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance with the requirements of
the Handbook, including notifying the ESFA of all transactions made on or after 1 April 2019 and obtaining their
approval where required, and with the academy trust's financial regulations and normal procurement procedures

relating to connected and related party transactions.

The following related party transaction(s) took place during the year:

Expenditure related party transaction

drb Schools and Academies Services Limited

A company in which Robert Bowater (CEO) has a 2020

direct interest £
Services provided by related company during period (pre 1/4/19 contracts) 67,224
Services provided by related company during period (post 1/4/19 contracts) 19.515

2018
£

75,717

The trust conducted these transactions at arms’ length following the trusts normal tendering procedures in
accordance with its financial regulations, which Robert Bowater neither participated in, nor influenced.

The above services have been provided at no more than cost and the related party has provided statements of

assurance confirming this.

In enlering into the transactions the trust has complied with the requirements of the Academies Financial

Handbook.
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